

CONSTITUTION OF CONSERVATIVES IN ACTION SA - CIAAsa

CONTENTS

1. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

- 1.1. Our Vision
- 1.2. Our Values
- 1.3. Our political Ideology

2. MEMBERSHIP

3. MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS

4. OBLIGATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

5. DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES

6. DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS

7. RIGHT OF APPEAL

8. LEGALITY OF THE PARTY

9. BRANCH LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - BLC

10. CONSTITUENCY LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - CLC

11. CONSTITUENCY YOUNG CONSERVATIVES LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – CYCLC

12. CONSTITUENCY CONSERVATIVES WOMEN'S LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – CCWLC

13. CONSERVATIVES STUDENT LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – CSLC

14. METRO LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – CSLC

15. PROVINCIAL LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – PLC

16. ZONAL LEADERSHIP COUNCILS - ZLC

17. STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - SLC

18. NATIONAL LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - NLC

19. NATIONAL WORKING LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - NWLC

20. OFFICE BEARERS – ROLES AND FUNCTIONS

21. NATIONAL YOUNG CONSERVATIVES LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - NYCLC

22. NATIONAL CONSERVATIVES WOMEN'S LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - NCWLC

23. NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS

24. PROVINCIAL HEADQUARTERS

25. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PUBLIC REPRESENTATIVES

26. GENERAL PROVISIONS

27. PARTY COLOURS AND LOGO

28. FEDERAL GENERAL CONFERENCE - FGC

29. RIGHT OF RECALL

30. AMENDMENTS

31. EXPLANATION OF TERMS USED IN THE CONSTITUTION

32. NAME OF THE PARTY

1. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES:

1.1 Our Vision:

- we look to God for Inspiration.
- our focus is on the restoration of hope, faith and peace in South Africa, now and in the future.
- we undertake to represent **All South Africans 'clearly, objectively, without equivocation, truthfully' and without any fear or favor,**
- we undertake to place our emphasis is on the social economic upliftment and empowerment of ALL SA'ns, without forgetting the injustices of the past against certain sectors of society,
- as a Party we will ensure were not spectators but participators of building this egalitarian State that we all seek,
- we promise and undertake to oppose all forms of 'elitism, job reservation, jobs for pal's or job's reservation for political party who hold political power, nepotism, cadre deployment', including CORRUPTION and any forms of State Capture (in any Govt Structure) including CORRUPTION in the private sector through monopolies or oligopolistic means,
- we stand for and argue very strongly for a vibrant entrepreneur driven economy as opposed to our current lopsided economy which is big business driven,
- we hold no apologies in our call for the strengthening of the middle class through reduction of:
 - personal income tax thresholds,
 - the elimination of e-tolls (which in itself is taxation),
 - the reduction of Vat and other forms of taxation to encourage and stimulate the economy,
- **we will strive** to ensure our pensioners discounts are applied across the spectrum supermarkets, hospitals, airfares, buses, taxis, everyday rather than on specific days,
- likewise, we will strive for tax incentives to business for all researched and proven methods which protect our kids and our youth,
- similarly, we advocate for the reduction of corporate taxes
- we will champion the call to be the **'Voice of Reason'** in the political landscape of South Africa given the subtle racial complexities and prejudices that our people have inherited and have to contend with on a daily basis,

We strive towards and are protagonists of:

- **Nation Building;**
- **National Reconciliation;**
- **National Unity;**
- **National reconstruction of our country;**
- **Patriotism;**

1.2 Our Values:

To this end, every Leader of the Party shall **unequivocally commit** to relentlessly pursue these objectives guided by the principles and guidelines listed hereunder:

- * Internal unity within the Party through respect and tolerance for each other.
- * ensure honesty, transparency & commitment in everything we do to serve our people.
- * ensure total emphasis on clear & good governance principles.
- * ensure the principle of 'consensus decision making' occurs in all decision making at all levels of the Party, but not at the expense of decisive decision making.
- * ensure adherence to the basic tenets of non- discrimination, non-racialism & non- sexism in all levels of the Party.
- * ensure that we represent our people effectively for the achievement of spiritual enrichment; socio-economic fairness, equality and emancipation.
- * ensure that we represent and raise concerns regarding the challenges our people encounter on a daily basis, with a 'clear and resounding Voice' without compromise.

We shall take the fight to ensure public and private economic opportunities and resources are invested & distributed equitably for all our people, given the historical disparities many of our communities face daily in the land of their birth.

We assure South African's that all our party Leaders, Office bearers & public representatives shall be at the forefront and champion the cause of the economic; social and spiritual justice for all South African's, irrespective of race, color, creed or gender.

We promise to vigorously oppose any attempts and or programs that covertly and or subtly drive our people to become and or feel like second class citizens in the land of their birth.

Every Leader in the Party, including members shall display attributes of respect & tolerance; diligence, honesty & integrity; passion for to uplift our people spiritually; economically and socially.

Every Leader of the Party, including members shall endeavor to be facilitators and promoters of peace & harmony in the political landscape of our beloved country and shall not perpetuate divisions amongst political parties, neither in any sphere of Govt.

1.3 Our political Ideology:

We hold firm Conservative views as a Party, as contained in our political education and induction manual (annexure1) with emphasis on:

- Building of and protection of the Family unit,
- Protection of children and the physically impaired,
- Protection of Life,
- commitment to human rights,
- commitment to economic development,
- reintroduction of stimulus Govt grants to business,
- - a accessible, professional and caring health system,
- balanced and circumspect government spending and planned immediate reduction of government debt,
- restructuring and private public partnerships at loss making Govt SOE's,
- a strong local currency,
- respect for all religious beliefs,
- reduction of inflation parameters as inflation is = to taxation,
- a free market economic system,
- creation of local industries to minimize imports,
- clear focus on job creation,
- freedom of religion;
- lowering of taxes,
- removal of consumer levies and tariffs from petrol and diesel,
- removal of all road tolls,
- protection of minority rights,
- protection of property rights,
- stronger defense force,
- self defence and ownership of guns,
- stronger police force and more police stations,
- building of additional schools, Colleges and Universities
- justice system that is more responsive with quicker court hearing dates,
- increase of conservative voices on the Benches in our Courts,
- world class health system and infrastructure,
- fair penal system with hard labor in prison that is commensurate to the crimes committed,
- restructuring of Housing boards headed by a diverse panel of experts,
- annual audits by independent Auditors of all housing lists at municipalities,
- re introduction of National and Provincial State Tender Boards headed by a diverse panel of experts,
- the strengthening of border controls,
- accessible quality education for all South African's,
- economic growth that produces tangible & recognizable social and economic benefits for everyone,

2. MEMBERSHIP

- 2.1 Membership of the Party is open to all citizens of South Africa who subscribe to the vision and the aims and objectives of the Party, as enshrined in this Constitution.
- 2.2 Membership is open to all South Africans who are 18 years of age or older, irrespective of race, color gender or creed.
- 2.3 The only grounds in which a Party structure may refuse a members request for membership is if it is proven that:
 - 2.4.1 the individual has been declared insolvent, is mentally insane, has been found guilty of a criminal offence in a court of law and is a member of another political organization that opposes the aims and objectives of the Party.
 - 2.4.2 the individual has been permanently expelled from the Party.
 - 2.4.3 the individual is unwilling to pay the membership fees as determined by the Strategic Leadership Council, which shall be adopted by the National Leadership Council - NLC.
- 2.5 Members shall be required to pay an annual membership fee as determined by a resolution of the Strategic Leadership Council - SLC, which shall be adopted by the National Leadership Council - NLC.
- 2.6 Membership receipts including membership cards shall bear the Party emblem and shall only be issued subject to payment of the prescribed subscription fee, as determined by the Leadership of the Party.
- 2.7 Non earning including or those on minimal incomes shall be allowed to pay a reduced subscription membership fee, as determined by a resolution of the Strategic Leadership Council - SLC, which shall be adopted by the National Leadership Council - NLC.
- 2.8 All membership fees shall be payable by January of each calendar year unless special concessions are made through a Resolution of the Strategic Leadership Council - SLC which shall be adopted by the National Leadership Council - NLC.

3. MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS

- 3.1. Any bona fide and paid up member has the right to elect and be elected to any position and or sub Committee of the Party, provided this is accordance with the Constitution.
- 3.2. Members shall have the right to participate freely in regular elections and decision- making structures of the Party, as outlined in the Constitution.
- 3.3. Members are encouraged to participate vigorously in the furtherance of the aims and objectives of the Party and, depending on the availability of resources, may receive support, training and information in the furtherance of these goals.
- 3.4. Members have the right to debate issues freely within Party structures without censure or fear of reprisals. Members shall, however be required, to desist from taking such internal debates to the media or other external forums without the explicit approval and or mandate of the appropriate Party structure.
- 3.5. Members shall be protected from all forms of discrimination and or prejudice, including but not limited to, discrimination based on gender, race, ethnicity, religious belief, disability, or medical condition.
- 3.6. All members, no matter the position held, are entitled to full protection in terms of this Constitution and all must be accorded equal dignity.
- 3.7. All membership rights may not be limited, diluted or restricted in any way.

4. OBLIGATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Every member/s shall be expected and are encouraged to make a positive contribution to the furtherance of the Aims and Objectives of the Party.
- 4.2 Every member/s shall abide by the provisions of this Constitution, including the respect of the rights of other members as outlined in the Bill of Rights of the Republic of South Africa.
- 4.3 Any member representing the Party in any position and or office shall be required, at all times, to adhere to the Code of Conduct for Public Representatives as outlined in the Constitution.
- 4.4 Every member/s shall be required, where necessary, to undergo training and development programs to develop and or upgrade and enhance their skills in the furtherance of the aims and objectives of the Party.
- 4.5 All members shall be required to desist from any activity that shall bring the organization into disrepute. This includes, but is not limited to, the violation of any of the laws of the Republic of South Africa.
- 4.6. Every member/s shall obey any relevant mandate, resolution, ruling, direction, or instruction of the Party that acted competently in the furtherance and aims of this Constitution.
- 4.7. Every member/s shall be obliged to uphold and respect the confidentiality of any discussion or decision of any organ of the Party that was not meant for public consumption.

5. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

- 5.1 Every member/s, without exception, shall abide by the Constitution of the Party and or any other policy and or Code/s of Conduct as determined by the Party.
- 5.2 Discipline shall be strictly enforced by the relevant Disciplinary Committee/s (DC) elected by the National Leadership Council who shall be responsible for the maintenance of good governance, discipline, integrity, honesty and the full adherence to the Party Constitution.
- 5.3 Any member who has committed an offence in breach of the Party aims and objectives shall be required to appear before a disciplinary enquiry constituted in accordance with the Party Constitution.
- 5.4 Offences shall include, but not limited to:
 - i) Becoming an office bearer by fraudulent means, including any form of electoral fraud.
 - ii) Retaining a position as an office bearer once ones term has expired or one is no longer eligible to hold such office.
 - iii) Defrauding the Party in any manner, including the non-transferral of funds received for the Party, the acceptance of funds without issuing proper receipts, the falsification of membership records or any other documentation, the incurrence of debt on behalf of the Party without due authorization, and using ones membership of the Party as a means for any form of dishonest or corrupt self-enrichment.
 - iv) Engaging in practices designed to negatively impact on the image of the Party, including disseminating false information or propaganda against the Party.
 - v) Attending any meeting of the Party, or in the case of public office bearers – any meeting connected with his, or her, duties whilst under the influence of any intoxicating substance.
 - vi) Disregarding the instructions and/or the directions of the Party leadership.
 - vii) Insubordination and/or insolence directed towards the Party leadership and/or bona fide organs of the party.
 - viii) Collecting and/or raising funds in the name of the Party without authorisation.
 - ix) Deliberate and/or willful violation of the Party's aims and objectives as outlined in the Constitution.

x) Refusal to participate and/or undergo training and development initiatives at the request of the Party without a full reasonable and written explanation and/or motivation.

5.5 A member accused of an offence shall have the right to be represented at all levels of the disciplinary processes.

5.6 The elected Disciplinary Committee (DC) presiding over any disciplinary hearings shall ensure the basic tenets to a fair hearing:

- i) Right to representation;
- ii) Right to translation or interpretation;
- iii) Right of appeal, if granted;
- iv) Right to be notified in advance of the disciplinary enquiry;
- v) Right to a fair hearing;

6. DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS

6.1 As part of correction and or punishment, sanctions meted out by the Disciplinary Committee shall be as follows:

- i. Caution,
- ii. Censure,
- iii. Written warning/s,
- iv. Final written warnings
- v. Suspension from Office and/or membership,
- vi. Recall from Office,
- vi. Expulsion,

6.2 All Disciplinary sanctions meted out by the Disciplinary Committee shall be confirmed in writing.

7. RIGHT OF APPEAL

7.1 Any member found guilty of an offence at a disciplinary hearing shall have the right to appeal. This may be refused or granted.

7.2 Appellants shall be required to lodge an Appeal in writing within 5 (five) working days from the date the disciplinary sanction was announced, to the respective Provincial structure where they are based, apart from National and Provincial Office bearers, who shall lodge their appeal/s directly to National Headquarters.

8. LEGALITY OF THE PARTY

8.1 The Party is a juristic person that may sue or be sued in its name.

9. BRANCH LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - BLC

9.1 The primary structure of the Party is the Branch. All members are required to form and or to belong to a Branch and to work towards the furtherance of Party mobilization and support. This shall include recruiting new members, fundraising for Branch activities, publicizing the fundamental beliefs and policies of the Party, the furtherance of the aims and objectives of the Party, election campaigning, and the conducting of any activity at the request of the Party.

9.2 Every Branch shall consist of not less than 50 (fifty) members, unless the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC, as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council - SLC has agreed to a lesser number in a specific case to aid initial mobilization. Every branch shall have a Branch Leadership Council (BLC).

- 9.3 Branch Council elections shall be held annually and shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council executive member expressly nominated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.
- 9.4 The Branch Leadership Council members responsible for the smooth running of the Branch shall comprise of office bearers as listed hereunder:
- i) Chairperson
 - ii) Deputy Chairperson
 - iii) Secretary
 - iv) Deputy Secretary
 - v) Treasurer
 - vi) Deputy Treasurer
 - vii) Branch Organizer,
- 9.5 The Branch Leadership Council shall be obliged to meet at least once a month and a quorum shall consist of 50% plus 1 of the total membership of the Branch Leadership Council.
- 9.6 The Branch Chairperson, in consultation with the Branch Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Branch and its Leadership Council.
- 9.7 The Branch Chairperson, in conjunction with the Branch Council, shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow Party support in the area of the Branch activities, including mobilizing voters prior to, and during, elections for public representatives.
- 9.8 The Branch Secretary in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Branch meetings and Branch Leadership Council meetings.
- 9.9 The Branch Secretary, in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Branch, and maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Branch and Leadership Executive meetings shall be forwarded to the Constituency Office and Provincial Headquarters.
- 9.10 The Branch Secretary, in conjunction with the deputy Secretary, shall also compile an annual report of the Branch activities in May of each year, which shall be submitted to the Branch Leadership Council for onward submission to the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 9.11 The Branch Treasurer, in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer, shall be responsible for collecting all membership funds, or donations received by the Branch, and shall remit all funds received to the Provincial Office for onward submission to Constituency Office and Provincial Headquarters.
- 9.12 The Branch Treasurer, in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer, shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, monies transferred to Constituency Office and the expenditure of money by the Branch. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 9.13 The Branch Treasurer, in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer, shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership return for the Provincial and National Headquarters.
- 9.14 The Branch Treasurer, in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer, shall be responsible for all Branch fundraising efforts.
- 9.15 The Branch Organizer in accordance with the Branch Leadership Committee mandate shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Branch and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not limited to, communicating with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.

10. CONSTITUENCY LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - CLC

- 10.1 In every District Council in South Africa, a Constituency Leadership Council shall be formed, provided that membership exceeds 500 (five hundred), unless the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council – SLC has resolved to a lesser number in a specific case to aid initial mobilization.
- 10.2 The Constituency Leadership Council, under the direction of the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC and in accordance with the National Leadership Council resolution, shall coordinate membership and mobilization campaigns aimed at popularizing the vision, values, policies, fundamental beliefs, aims and objectives, membership recruitment, fundraising and election campaigning, where Constituency wide campaigns are required.
- 10.3 The Constituency Leadership Council shall act as a communication channel between the Provincial Leadership Council and the Branch Leadership Council.
- 10.4 The Constituency Leadership Council shall also develop and interpret Party policies to make them relevant and pertinent to circumstances that prevail at the Constituency level.
- 10.5 The Constituency Leadership Council shall assist branches when requested to do so by the National Leadership Council.
- 10.6 The Constituency Leadership Council shall also conduct activities requested of it by Provincial Leadership Council.
- 10.7 The Constituency Leadership Council shall further organize an elective Constituency Conference every three years consisting of outgoing Constituency Leadership Council Members, and all Branch Leadership Council Members at which the new Constituency Leadership Council is elected.
- 10.8 Constituency Leadership Council elections shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member/s expressly mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.
- 10.9. Office Bearers elected by the Constituency Conference to serve on the Constituency Leadership Council shall comprise of:
 - i) Chairperson,
 - ii) Deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) Deputy Secretary,
 - v) Treasurer,
 - vi) Deputy Treasurer,
 - vii) Constituency Organizer,
 - viii) Chair and Secretary - Constituency Young Conservatives Council,
 - ix) Chair and Secretary – Constituency Women Conservatives Council,
 - x) Members of Provincial and National Parliament,
 - xi) Municipal Councilor/s,
- 10.10 The Constituency Leadership Council shall meet at least once a month and a quorum shall consist of 50% + 1 of members of the Council.
- 10.11. The Constituency Chairperson, in consultation with the Constituency Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Constituency and its Leadership Council.
- 10.12 The Constituency Chairperson, in conjunction with the Constituency Leadership Council, shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow Party support in the area of the Branch and Constituency activities, including mobilizing voters prior to, and during, elections for public representatives.
- 10.13 The Constituency Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Constituency Leadership Council meetings.
- 10.14 The Constituency Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Constituency Leadership Council and shall maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Constituency Leadership Council meetings shall be forwarded to the Provincial Headquarters.

- 10.15 The Constituency Secretary in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on Constituency activities in May of each year. This report shall be submitted to the Constituency Council for onward submission to the Provincial Headquarters.
- 10.16 The Constituency Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for the collection of all donations received by the Constituency, and shall remit all funds received to Provincial Headquarters.
- 10.17 The Constituency Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to Provincial Headquarters and the expenditure of monies spent by the Constituency Council. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 10.18 The Constituency Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership return for the Provincial Headquarters.
- 10.19 The Constituency Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for all Constituency fundraising efforts.
- 10.20 The Constituency Organizer, in accordance with the Constituency mandate, shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Constituency and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited to, liaising with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 10.21 The Constituency Organizer shall compile a database of skills and expertise of Constituency Members in order that they can be deployed appropriately for worthy community projects, including political work.

11. CONSTITUENCY YOUNG CONSERVATIVES LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - CYCLC

- 11.1 The Constituency Young Conservatives Council shall be tasked with mobilizing the Youth of the each Region.
- 11.2 In every Metropolitan Council or District Council in South Africa, a Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council (CYCLC) shall be formed, provided that membership exceeds 500 (five hundred), unless the National Leadership Council under the direction of the Strategic Leadership Council has resolved to a lesser number in a specific case to aid initial mobilization.
- 11.3 It shall have its own Constituency Youth Leadership Council consisting of:
 - i) Chairperson,
 - ii) Deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) Deputy Secretary,
 - v) Treasurer,
 - vi) Deputy Treasurer,
 - vii) Constituency Youth Organizer,
- 11.2 The Chairperson and Secretary shall be required to serve on the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council of the Party.
- 11.3 The Constituency Young Conservatives Chairperson, in consultation with the Constituency Young Conservatives Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council.
- 11.4 The Constituency Young Conservatives Chairperson, in consultation with the Constituency Leadership Council shall also lead all youth mobilization campaigns to grow Party support in the Branches and the Constituency activities, including mobilizing youth and or voters prior to and during elections for Party public representatives.
- 11.5. The Constituency Young Conservatives Council Chairperson, in consultation with the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Constituency and its Leadership Council working under the direction of the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 11.6 The Constituency Young Conservatives Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Constituency Youth Leadership Council meetings, shall conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council and shall also maintain records of all documentation sent and received.

Copies of all Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council meetings shall be forwarded to the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.

- 11.7 The Constituency Young Conservatives Secretary in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council activities in May of each year and shall also submit this report to the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 11.8 The Constituency Young Conservatives Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for collecting all membership funds and or donations received by the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council and shall remit all funds received to the Provincial Headquarters of the Party.
- 11.9 The Constituency Young Conservatives Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to Provincial Headquarters and the expenditure of money by the Constituency. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 11.10 The Constituency Young Conservatives Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership schedule for onward submission to Provincial Headquarters.
- 11.11 The Constituency Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall also be responsible for all Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council fundraising efforts.
- 11.12 The Constituency Young Conservatives Organizer in accordance with the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council mandate shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited to liaising and interacting with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 11.13 The Constituency Young Conservatives Organizer shall also be responsible for all Community Development and Organizational work in accordance with the Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council mandate and shall identify worthy community development projects where the Constituency can assist, develop and or initiate such projects.
- 11.14 The Constituency Organizer under the direction of the Constituency Young Conservative Leadership Council shall also compile a database of the skills and expertise of Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council members so that they can be deployed by the Party for worthy community development projects.
- 11.15 The powers of these office bearers shall be limited to Youth matters.
- 11.16 The Constituency Young Conservative Leadership Council elections shall be held every three years and shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member expressly nominated by Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.
- 11.17 Only Members under thirty years of age shall be eligible for election to Constituency Young Conservatives Leadership Council positions.

12. CONSTITUENCY CONSERVATIVES WOMEN'S LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - CCWLC

- 12.1 The Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council shall be tasked with mobilizing the women of the Constituency.
- 12.2 In every Metropolitan Council or District Council in South Africa, a Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council (CCWLC) shall be formed, provided that membership exceeds 500 (five hundred), unless the National Leadership Council under the direction of the Strategic Leadership Council, has resolved to a lesser number in a specific case to aid initial mobilization.
- 12.3 It shall have its own Leadership Council consisting of:
 - i) Chairperson,

- ii) deputy Chairperson,
- iii) Secretary,
- iv) deputy Secretary,
- v) Treasurer,
- vi) deputy Treasurer,
- vii) Constituency Conservatives Women's Organizer,

- 12.4. The Chairperson and Secretary shall also be required to serve on the Constituency Leadership Council of the Party.
- 12.5. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Chairperson, in consultation with the Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Constituency and its Leadership Council working under the direction of the Provincial Leadership Council.
- 12.6. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Chairperson, in conjunction with the Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow women and Party support in the area of the Branch & Constituency activities, including mobilizing voters prior to and during elections for Party public representatives.
- 12.7. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council meetings.
- 12.8. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Constituency Women's Conservatives Leadership Council and shall maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council meetings & resolutions including plans of action shall be forwarded to the National Conservatives Women's Leadership Council and the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 12.9. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on Constituency activities in May of each year, which shall be submitted to the Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council and the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 12.10. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for collecting all membership funds and or donations received by the Constituency and shall remit all funds received to the Provincial Headquarters.
- 12.11. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to Provincial Headquarters and the expenditure of money by the Constituency. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 12.12. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership schedule in accordance with Provincial and for National Headquarters directions.
- 12.13. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall also be responsible for all Constituency Council fundraising efforts under the direct authority and direction of the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 12.14. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Organizer, in accordance with the Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council mandate, shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Constituency and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited, to liaising with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 12.15. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Organizer in accordance with the Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council mandate shall identify worthy community development projects where the Constituency can assist, develop and or initiate such projects.
- 12.16. The Constituency Conservatives Women's Organizer shall also compile a database of the skills and expertise of the Constituency Women's Members so that they can be deployed by the Party for worthy community development projects.

- 12.17 The powers of these office bearers shall be limited to issues specific to the mobilization of women.
- 12.18 The Constituency Conservatives Women's Leadership Council elections shall be held every three years and shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member expressly nominated and mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.

13. STUDENT CONSERVATIVES LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - SCLC

- 13.1 The Student Conservatives Leadership Council shall be tasked with mobilizing Students in Tertiary Institutions across South African Universities and Technical Colleges.
- 13.2 In every University or Tertiary College, a Student Conservatives Leadership Council (SCLC) shall be formed, provided that membership exceeds 250 (two hundred and fifty), unless the National Leadership Council under the direction of the Strategic Leadership Council, has resolved to a lesser number in a specific case to aid initial mobilization.
- 13.3 It shall have its own Leadership Council consisting of:
- i) Chairperson,
 - ii) deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) deputy Secretary,
 - v) Treasurer,
 - vi) deputy Treasurer,
 - vii) Student Conservatives Organizer,
- 13.4 The Chairperson and Secretary shall also be required to serve on the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC of the Party.
- 13.5 The Student Conservatives Council Chairperson, in consultation with the Student Conservatives Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Student Conservatives Leadership Council working under the direction of the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 13.6 The Student Conservatives Council Chairperson, in conjunction with the Student Conservatives Leadership Council shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow party support for Students in Universities, including mobilizing voters prior to and during elections for Party public representatives.
- 13.7 The Student Conservatives Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Student Leadership Council meetings.
- 13.8 The Student Conservatives Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Student Conservatives Leadership Council and shall maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Student Conservatives Leadership Council meetings & resolutions including plans of action shall be forwarded to the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 13.9 The Student Conservatives Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on University activities in May of each year, which shall be submitted to the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC.
- 13.10 The Student Conservatives Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for collecting all membership funds and or donations received by the Council and shall remit all funds received to the Party Provincial Headquarters.
- 13.11 The Student Conservatives Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to Provincial Headquarters and the expenditure of money by the University. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.

- 13.12 The Student Conservatives Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership schedule in accordance with Provincial and for National Headquarters directions.
- 13.13 The Student Conservatives Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall also be responsible for all Student Conservatives Council fundraising efforts under the direct authority and direction of the Provincial Leadership Council.
- 13.14 The Student Conservatives Organizer in accordance with the Student Conservatives Leadership Council mandate shall be responsible for publicizing the party activities in the University and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited, to liaising with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 13.15 The Student Conservatives Organizer in accordance with the Student Conservatives Leadership Council mandate shall identify worthy projects where the Student Conservatives Leadership Council can assist, develop and or initiate such projects.
- 13.16 The Student Conservatives Organizer shall also compile a database of the skills and expertise of party members in the requisite University so that they can be deployed by the Party for worthy Tertiary and or community development projects.
- 13.17 The powers of these office bearers shall be limited to issues specific to the mobilization of Students.
- 13.18 The Student Conservatives Leadership Council elections shall be held every three years and shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member expressly nominated and mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.

14. METRO LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - MLC

- 14.1 In every Metropolitan Council in South Africa, a Metro Leadership Council shall be formed, provided that membership exceeds 500 (five hundred), unless the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council – SLC has resolved to a lesser number in a specific case to aid initial mobilization.
- 14.2 The Metro Leadership Council, under the direction of the Provincial Leadership Council - PLC and in accordance with the National Leadership Council resolution, shall coordinate membership and mobilization campaigns aimed at popularizing the vision, values, policies, fundamental beliefs, aims and objectives, membership recruitment, fundraising and election campaigning, where Metro wide campaigns are required.
- 14.3 The Metro Leadership Council shall act as a communication channel between the Provincial Leadership Council and the Branch Leadership Councils in the Metro's.
- 14.4 The Metro Leadership Council shall also develop and interpret Party policies to make them relevant and pertinent to circumstances that prevail at the Metro level.
- 14.5 The Metro Leadership Council shall assist branches when requested to do so by the National Leadership Council.
- 14.6 The Metro Leadership Council shall also conduct activities requested of it by Provincial Leadership Council.
- 14.7 The Metro Leadership Council shall further organize an elective Metro Conference every three years consisting of outgoing Metro Leadership Council Members, and all Branch Leadership Council Members at which the new Metro Leadership Council is elected.
- 14.8 Metro Leadership Council elections shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member/s expressly mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.
- 14.9 Office Bearers elected by the Metro Conference to serve on the Metro Leadership Council shall comprise of:
 - i) Chairperson,
 - ii) Deputy Chairperson,

- iii) Secretary,
- iv) Deputy Secretary,
- v) Treasurer,
- vi) Deputy Treasurer,
- vii) Constituency Organizer,
- viii) Chair and Secretary - Constituency Young Conservatives Council,
- ix) Chair and Secretary – Constituency Women Conservatives Council,
- x) Members of Provincial and National Parliament,
- xi) Municipal Councilor/s,

- 14.10 The Metro Leadership Council shall meet at least once a month and a quorum shall consist of 50% + 1 of members of the Council.
- 14.11. The Metro Chairperson, in consultation with the Metro Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Metro and its Leadership Council.
- 14.12 The Metro Chairperson, in conjunction with the Metro Leadership Council, shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow Party support in the area of all branch, Constituency activities in the Metro, including mobilizing voters prior to, and during, elections for public representatives.
- 14.13 The Metro Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Metro Leadership Council meetings.
- 14.14 The Metro Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Metro Leadership Council and shall maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Metro Leadership Council meetings shall be forwarded to the Provincial Headquarters.
- 14.15 The Metro Secretary in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on all activities related to the Metro in May of each year. This report shall be submitted to the Metro Leadership Council for onward submission to the Provincial Headquarters.
- 14.16 The Metro Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for the collection of all donations received by the Metro Leadership Council, and shall remit all funds received to Provincial Headquarters.
- 14.17 The Constituency Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to Provincial Headquarters and the expenditure of monies spent by the Metro Leadership Council. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 14.18 The Metro Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership return for the Provincial Headquarters.
- 14.19 The Metro Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for all Metro fundraising efforts.
- 14.20 The Metro Organizer, in accordance with the Metro mandate, shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Constituency and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited to, liaising with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 14.21 The Metro Organizer shall compile a database of skills and expertise of Metro Members in order that they can be deployed appropriately for worthy community projects, including political work.

15. PROVINCIAL LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - PLC

- 15.1 In every Province in South Africa, a Provincial Leadership Council shall be formed, comprising of all Metro Leadership Council Chairpersons, deputy Chairpersons and Secretaries as well as Constituency Chairpersons, deputy Chairpersons and Constituency Secretaries.
- 15.2 The Provincial Leadership Council, in accordance with the National Leadership Council resolution, shall coordinate membership and mobilization campaigns aimed at popularizing the vision, values, policies,

fundamental beliefs, aims and objectives, membership recruitment, fundraising and election campaigning, where Provincial wide campaigns are required.

- 15.3 The Provincial Leadership Council, under the direction of the Strategic Leadership Council, endorsed by the National Leadership Council shall be the only structure that inaugurates supporters groups on social media on the express condition that these platforms exceed 1,000 paid up members.
- 15.4 The Provincial Leadership Council shall act as a communication channel between the Strategic Leadership Council, including the National Leadership Council, all Metro Leadership Council's, Constituency Leadership Councils and all Branch Leadership Councils.
- 15.5 The Provincial Leadership Council, in conjunction with the Zonal Leadership Council, shall also develop and interpret Party policies to make them relevant and pertinent to circumstances that prevail at the Provincial level. In so doing it shall liaise closely with any Party public representatives the Party may have in the Province, the Constituencies, the Districts and the Metropolitan municipalities.
- 15.6 The Provincial Leadership Council shall assist the Metro Leadership Council's, Branches and Constituencies when called upon to do so by the Zonal Leadership Council and or by the National Leadership Council.
- 15.7 The Provincial Leadership Council shall also conduct activities requested of it by the Zonal Leadership Council as endorsed by the National Leadership Council.
- 15.8 The Provincial Leadership Council, in conjunction with the Zonal Leadership Council, as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council through a National Leadership Council resolution shall organize an elective Provincial Conference every three years consisting of the outgoing Provincial Leadership Council Members and all legitimate and bona fide Councils within the Province to elect the new Provincial Leadership Council.
- 15.9 Provincial Leadership Council elections shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member/s expressly mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.
- 15.10. Office Bearers elected at the Provincial Conference to serve on the Provincial Leadership Council shall comprise of:
 - i) Chairperson,
 - ii) Deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) Deputy Secretary,
 - v) Treasurer,
 - vi) Deputy Treasurer,
 - vii) Provincial Organizer,
 - viii) Chair and Secretary - Provincial Young Conservatives Leadership Council,
 - ix) Chair and Secretary - Provincial Conservatives Women's Leadership Council,
 - x) Members of Provincial and National Parliament,
 - xi) Municipal Councilor/s,
 - xii) specific members of the business, religious and sporting fields- ex officio positions
- 15.11 The Provincial Leadership Council shall convene regularly not less than once a month and a quorum shall consist of 50% + 1 of members of the Council.
- 15.12 All Provincial Leadership Council meetings shall be called by the Provincial Chairperson in conjunction with the deputy Chairperson and Secretary. All meetings shall be confirmed and endorsed by the Zonal Leadership Council.
- 15.13. The Provincial Chairperson, in consultation with the Provincial Leadership Council, shall call and preside over all meetings of the Provincial Council and its Leadership Council.
- 15.14 The Provincial Chairperson, in conjunction with the Provincial Leadership Council, shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow Party support in the area of the Branch and Constituency activities, including mobilizing voters prior to, and during, elections for public representatives.

- 15.15 The Provincial Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Provincial Leadership Council meetings.
- 15.16 The Provincial Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Provincial Leadership Council and shall maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Provincial Leadership Council meetings shall be forwarded to the National Headquarters.
- 15.17 The Provincial Secretary in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on Provincial activities in May of each year. This report shall be submitted to the National Leadership Council for onward submission to the Secretary General's Office.
- 15.18 The Provincial Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for the collection of all donations received by the Province, and shall remit all funds received to National Headquarters.
- 15.19 The Provincial Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to National Headquarters and the expenditure of monies spent by the Provincial Council. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 15.20 The Provincial Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership return for the Provincial Office and the National Headquarters.
- 15.21 The Provincial Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for all Provincial fundraising efforts under the express direction of the Strategic Leadership Council, endorsed by the National Leadership Council.
- 15.22 The Provincial Organizer in accordance with the Provincial Council mandate, shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Constituency and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited to, liaising with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 15.23 The Provincial Organizer shall compile a database of the skills and expertise of Provincial Members in order that they are deployed by the Party for worthy community development projects.
- 15.24 The Office bearers of the Strategic Leadership Council led by the Office of the President shall be required to provide ultimate and or the requisite oversight and shall be required to attend all Provincial Council meetings, to ensure Provincial Councils are fully appraised and are kept up to date on all matters, related to the Party.

16. ZONAL LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - ZLC

- 16.1 Certain Provinces in South Africa, as agreed to by the SLC, will be grouped together to constitute Zonal Leadership Councils, comprising of all Metro Chairpersons, Constituency Chairpersons, their deputy Chairpersons and Secretaries.
- 16.2 Zonal Leadership Councils, in accordance with the National Leadership Council resolution, shall coordinate membership and mobilization campaigns aimed at popularizing the vision, values, policies, fundamental beliefs, aims and objectives, membership recruitment, fundraising and election campaigning, where Provincial wide campaigns are required.
- 16.3 Zonal Leadership Councils shall exercise oversight and co-ordination roles and functions, under the direction of the Strategic Leadership Council, endorsed by the National Leadership Council as they assist and direct Provincial Leadership Councils to achieve the scope and goals set out for them by the Strategic Leadership Council.
- 16.4 Zonal Leadership Councils shall act as a communication channel between the Strategic Leadership Council, including the National Leadership Council, Provincial Leadership Councils, Constituency Leadership Councils and all Branch Leadership Councils.
- 16.5 Zonal Leadership Councils shall also guide and assist Provincial Leadership Councils as they develop and interpret Party policies to make them relevant and pertinent to circumstances that prevail at the Provincial level. In so doing it shall liaise closely with any Party public representatives the Party may have in the Province, the Constituencies, the Districts and the Metropolitan municipalities.

- 16.6 Zonal Leadership Council's in conjunction with the Provincial Leadership Councils, shall guide and assist Constituencies, Metro Leadership Council's and Branches when called upon to do so by the National Leadership Council.
- 16.7 Zonal Leadership Councils shall also conduct all activities requested of it by the National Leadership Council.
- 16.8 Zonal Leadership Councils, as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council, through a National Leadership Council resolution shall organize an elective Zonal Leadership Conference every three years consisting of the outgoing Zonal Leadership Council Members and all legitimate and bona fide Councils within the Provinces to elect the new Zonal Leadership Council.
- 16.9 Zonal Leadership Council elections shall be presided over by a National Leadership Council member/s expressly mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council to oversee and manage the election process.
- 16.10. Office Bearers elected at the Zonal Leadership Conference to serve on the Zonal Leadership Council shall comprise of:
 - i) Chairperson,
 - ii) deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) deputy Secretary,
 - v) Treasurer,
 - vi) deputy Treasurer,
 - vii) Zonal and Provincial Organizers,
 - viii) Chairs and Secretaries - Provincial Young Conservatives Leadership Councils,
 - ix) Chairs and Secretaries - Provincial Conservatives Women's Leadership Councils,
 - x) Members of Provincial and National Parliament from their respective Provinces,
 - xi) Municipal Councilor/s from the Provinces,
 - xii) specific members of the business, religious and sporting fields- ex officio positions,
- 16.11 Zonal Leadership Council Office bearers cannot occupy positions on the Provincial Leadership Council.
- 16.12 The Zonal Leadership Council shall convene regularly not less than once a month and a quorum shall consist of 50% + 1 of members of the Council.
- 16.13 All Zonal Leadership Council meetings shall be called by the Zonal Leadership Council Chairperson in conjunction with the deputy Chairperson and Secretary. All meetings shall be confirmed and endorsed by the Zonal Leadership Council.
- 16.14. The Zonal Leadership Council Chairperson, in consultation with the Zonal Leadership Council, shall preside over all meetings of the Zonal Leadership Council.
- 16.15 The Zonal Leadership Council Chairperson, in conjunction with the Zonal Leadership Council, shall also lead all mobilization campaigns to grow Party support in the area of the Branch and Constituency activities, including mobilizing voters prior to, and during, elections for public representatives.
- 16.16 The Zonal Leadership Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall write and keep minutes of all Zonal Leadership Council meetings.
- 16.17 The Zonal Leadership Council Secretary and the deputy Secretary shall also conduct all correspondence on behalf of the Zonal Leadership Council and shall maintain records of all documentation sent and received. Copies of all Zonal Leadership Council meetings shall be forwarded to the National Headquarters.
- 16.18 The Zonal Leadership Council Secretary in conjunction with the deputy Secretary shall also compile an annual report on all Zonal activities in May of each year. This report shall be submitted to the National Leadership Council for onward submission to the Secretary General's Office.
- 16.19 The Zonal Leadership Council Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for the collection of all donations received by the Zonal Leadership Council and shall remit all funds received to National Headquarters.

- 16.20 The Zonal Leadership Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall keep a detailed set of accounts itemizing money received, money transferred to National Headquarters and the expenditure of monies spent by the Zonal Leadership Council. This shall include compiling monthly returns and an annual financial statement.
- 16.21 The Provincial Treasurer in conjunction with the deputy Treasurer shall issue membership cards and receipts and compile a monthly membership return for the Provincial Office and the National Headquarters.
- 16.22 The Zonal Leadership Council Treasurer and the deputy Treasurer shall be responsible for all Zonal fundraising efforts under the express direction of the Strategic Leadership Council, as endorsed by the National Leadership Council.
- 16.23 The Zonal Leadership Council Organizer in accordance with the Zonal Leadership Council mandate, shall be responsible for publicizing the activities of the Constituency and the activities of the Party in general. This shall include, but not be limited to, liaising with the local media, public relations and marketing campaigns.
- 16.24 The Zonal Leadership Council Organizer shall compile a database of the skills and expertise of all Provincial Members, in conjunction with the Provincial Leadership Councils in order that they are deployed by the Party for worthy community development projects.
- 16.25 The Office bearers of the Strategic Leadership Council led by the Office of the President shall be required to provide the requisite and ultimate oversight and shall be required to attend all Zonal Leadership Council meetings, to ensure the Zonal Leadership Councils are fully appraised and are kept up to date on all matters, related to the Party.

17. STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - SLC

- 17.1 The aims and objectives of this structure of the Party is to plan, discuss tactics and strategy on all local, continental and global socio-economic matters including the political environmental and any other related matters that affects South Africa.
- 17.2 This includes election campaigns, membership drives, fundraising campaigns, succession planning, discipline in the Party Code of conduct, Election Manifesto's, Political education and political ideology, including the establishment of an Emerging Leaders Institute within the Party.
- 17.3 This structure shall not work independently but shall work in conjunction with the National Leadership Council.
- 17.4 The Strategic Leadership Council members shall be limited to the top 20 in the Party and shall comprise of the ff office bearers:
- i) Office of the Presidency, led by the President and deputy President/s,
 - ii) Chief Policy and Research Officer - CPRO,
 - iv) Chief Financial Officer of the Treasury - CFO,
 - v) Chief of Administration - CoA,
 - vi) Chief of Security and Intelligence - CSI,
 - vii) Chief of Operations - COO,
 - vii) Office of Strategy and Tactics, led by the President and deputy President,
 - viii) Office of IT, Image, Publicity, led by the President and deputy President,
 - ix) ex Officio Provincial Leadership Council Chairpersons - by invitation,
 - x) ex Officio Provincial Leadership Council Young Conservatives Leadership Chairperson - by invitation,
 - xi) ex Officio Provincial Leadership Council Conservatives Women's Leadership Chairperson - by invitation,
 - xii) ex Officio Strategic Advisers - by invitation,

18. NATIONAL LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - NLC

- 18.1 The governing organ of the Party shall be the National Leadership Council comprising of office bearers as listed hereunder:
- i) President,

- ii) deputy President/s,
 - iii) Office of Policy and Research led by CPRO,
 - iv) Office of the Treasury led by CFO,
 - v) Office of Administration led by CoA,
 - vi) Office of Security and Intelligence led by CSI,
 - vii) Office of Operations - COO,
 - viii) Office of IT, Image and Publicity, led by President and deputy President,
 - ix) All Zonal Leadership Council and Provincial Leadership Council - Chairpersons,
 - x) All Zonal Leadership Council and Provincial Leadership Council - Secretaries,
 - xi) All Zonal Leadership Council and Provincial Leadership Council - Treasurers,
 - xii) Office of National Organizer including Zonal and Provincial Council Organizers,
 - xiii) All Provincial Council Chairpersons - Young Conservatives Leadership Council,
 - xiv) All Provincial Council Secretaries - Young Conservatives Leadership Council,
 - xv) All Provincial Council Chairpersons - Women's Conservatives Leadership Council,
 - xvi) All Provincial Council Secretaries - Women's Conservatives Leadership Council,
 - xvii) All National and Provincial members of Parliament,
 - xviii) All District and Metropolitan Councilors,
 - xix) Ex Officio strategic members of the Party by invitation, from the religious; business and professional sector to ensure meaningful representation and also for guidance and advisory purposes. These members shall Not number more than ten (10),
 - xx) ex Officio external Strategic Advisers - by invitation, not more than five (5),
- 18.2 A quorum of the National Leadership Council shall comprise of sixty seven percent (67%) of all Office bearers serving on the National Leadership Council.
- 18.3 The National Leadership Council directed by the President and assisted by the deputy President/s shall be the national and highest decision making body of the Party in the country in between any National Conferences.
- 18.4 The National Leadership Council directed by and under the leadership of the Strategic Leadership Council shall have the power, in consultation with the Provincial Councils to communicate and or coordinate and or assist and or interact and or facilitate and or instruct with any and or all organs and or structures of the Party, should it become necessary to do so in the interests of Party unity and or Party mobilization.
- 18.5 The National Leadership Council directed by and under the leadership of the Strategic Leadership Council shall be the only formal communication channel between the National Leadership Council and all or any Provincial and or Constituency Councils.
- 18.6 The National Leadership Council directed by and under the leadership of the Strategic Leadership Council shall develop and interpret all Party policies to make them relevant and pertinent to circumstances that prevail in the country. In so doing it shall liaise closely with all public representatives the Party has in all the Municipal Councils; Provincial Legislature/s, National Council of Provinces (NCOP) and National Parliament so as to devise ways to implement such policies, or to have them articulated in all three tiers of Govt so that they are effective and clearly portray the voice and or the mandate of our people. This shall include the formation of Portfolio Committees for research and or the formulation in relation to policies of national and or provincial importance.
- 18.7 The National Leadership Council directed by and under the leadership of the Strategic Leadership Council shall be obliged to intervene in any Province should it be required and or when requested by any of the Provincial Councils to assist or intervene, whenever necessary.
- 18.8 All meetings of the National Leadership Council shall be called and convened by the Leader of the Party, in consultation with the deputy Leader/s and the office of Secretary General by giving National Leadership Council members sufficient notice of the date, venue and agenda for meeting.
- 18.9 The inaugural National Leadership and Strategic Leadership Council members and office bearers shall be required to serve and or provide leadership to the Party for a period that spans two national Govt elections during this foundational and Party building process.
- 18.10 Thereafter, all Office bearers shall be elected every five years at the Elective General Conference. Should any Office bearer position become vacant at any time before the Elective General Conference, the National Leadership Council directed by the Strategic Leadership Council shall by consensus fill the vacant positions within thirty days (30) days of the position becoming vacant.

- 18.11 **Attendance at meetings:** - Office bearers shall be required to attend every Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council meetings except when leave of absence is granted through the office of the President.
- 18.12 Office bearers who absent themselves from three or more consecutive National Leadership Council without a valid and or good reason shall be automatically disqualified from serving on the National Leadership Council.
- 18.13 **General Conduct of office bearers:** - All National Leadership Council members and or office bearers shall be required to undertake their duties and perform their functions of office in good faith, with absolute honesty and integrity and also in a transparent manner that has the best and or express interests of the Party at all times so as to ensure the image and credibility of the Party is not compromised in any way.
- 18.14 Pending the Elective General Conference, to ensure empowerment, development, succession planning & the reflection of gender and constituency representation, all or any National Leadership Council vacancies that arise shall be filled based on the motivations and clear recommendations of the Branches, Constituencies made through the Provincial Councils of all structures within the Party.
- 18.15 All resolutions of the National Leadership Council shall be by consensus and shall be recorded in writing, signed off by the President, on behalf of the National Leadership Council.
- 18.16 The total number of National Leadership Council members including office bearers shall not exceed 100 one hundred members.

19. NATIONAL WORKING LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – NWLC

- 19.1 The National Working Council is constituted as an Operations and Management Council structure to attend to and deal with day to day matters that affect the Party or matters of an Urgent nature.
- 19.2 The National Working Council shall comprise of office bearers as listed hereunder:
- i) President,
 - ii) deputy President/s,
 - iv) Office of Policy and Research led by Chief of Policy and research - CPRO,
 - iv) Office of the Treasury led by Chief Financial Officer - CFO,
 - v) Office of Administration led by Chief Administration Officer - CAO,
 - vi) Office of Operations led by Chief of Operations - COO;
 - vi) Office of Security and Intelligence led Chief Security and Intelligence Officer - CSIO,
 - vii) Office of IT, Image and Publicity, led by President and deputy President/s,
 - viii) Office of Foreign Relations and International Affairs led by President and deputy President/s,
 - ix) National Conservatives Women’s Leadership Council - Chairperson, by invitation,
 - x) Zonal Leadership Council and Provincial Leadership Council - Chairpersons, by invitation,
 - xi) National Young Conservatives Leadership Council - Chairperson, by invitation,
 - xii) deputies of the aforementioned Office bearers, by invitation,
 - xiii) National Organizer Facilitator, by invitation,
 - xiv) Any other member/s appointed by the Strategic Leadership Council because of skills and leadership abilities that will assist the Party, by invitation.
- 19.3 The National Working Leadership Council shall meet at least once a month under the direction of the President, in consultation with the deputy President, Offices of Treasury, Policy and Research, Administration, IT, Image and Publicity, Security and Intelligence, National Women’s and Youth Leadership Council Chairpersons, Zonal Leadership and Provincial Leadership Council Chairpersons. A quorum shall not exist whenever and or if the President or in his absent the deputy President are Not present.
- 19.4 The National Working Council shall be the planning and or implementation forum to execute Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council Resolutions and to advise and or assist the National Leadership Council or Strategic Leadership Council, or both.

- 19.5 The National Working Council shall have the powers to set up sub committee's provided this has been ratified and or endorsed by the members of the Strategic Leadership Council and National Working Leadership Council.
- 19.6 All resolutions of the National Working Leadership Council shall be by consensus and shall be recorded in writing, signed off by the President and deputy President on behalf of the National Leadership Council..
- 19.7 The total number of NWLC members including office bearers shall not exceed fifty (50).
- 19.8 **Attendance at meetings:** - Office bearers shall be required to attend all National Working Council meetings except when leave of absence is granted through the office of the Leader.
- 19.9 Office bearers who are absent from three or more consecutive National Working Leadership Council meetings without a valid and or good reason shall be automatically disqualified from serving on the National Working Leadership Council.
- 19.10 **General Conduct of office bearers:** - All National Working Leadership Council members and or office bearers shall be required to undertake their duties and perform their functions of office in good faith, with absolute honesty and integrity and shall conduct themselves in a transparent manner at all times in the best interests of the Party so as to ensure the image and credibility of the Party is not compromised in any way.

20. OFFICE BEARERS – ROLES AND FUNCTIONS

- 20.1 The President shall be the Head and Chief Executive Officer of the Party, providing oversight; tactics, leadership, policy & strategic direction, including the management of the Organization on a day to day basis.
- 20.2 The President in consultation with the deputy President/s shall call and convene meetings of the Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council.
- 20.3 The President or in his absence the deputy President shall be the Chairperson and Leader of the house at all Strategic Leadership Council or National Leadership Council meetings.
- 20.4 The President or in his absence the deputy President shall be the Party's chief spokesperson, serve as the official Leading representative of the Party in all or any Govt and or national and international forums, and shall enjoy any other powers specified in this Constitution.
- 20.5 The President or in his absence the deputy President shall make pronouncements for and on behalf of the Party outlining and explaining the policy and vision of the Party on any matter.
- 20.6 The President in consultation with deputy President/s and the Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Councils shall make the final decision of all public representative placements and or replacements and or deployments and or amendments to the Party lists at all levels of Government.
- 20.7 The deputy President/s shall lead the Offices of Operations, Women, Children, Aged, Youth and Administration reporting directly to the President and the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council.
- 20.8 The deputy President/s shall be responsible for the oversight & implementation of all policy, strategy or any matter, as mandated by the President through the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council.
- 20.9 The deputy President/s including the various Chief Officers of Portfolio's shall be allocated political and or administrative tasks and responsibilities by the President based on their expertise and skills.
- 20.10 The various Chief Officers of Portfolio's shall report directly to the Presidency and shall also be responsible for all Administration and operational matters, incl the day to day running of the Party at all levels of the Party.
This shall include:
* ensuring that the aims and objectives of the Party are implemented;
* assisting the National, Provincial and Constituency Organizational Offices with Party mobilization and recruitment of members, policy formulation, managing of Admin support staff, appointment of auditors, payments and/or reconciliation of accounts, grants and donor funding, international and national fundraising initiatives, marketing initiatives, monthly reports, compilation of strategic plans, election strategies and campaigns, policy

matters, political education, coordinating and establishing sub Committees, reports and proposals, and all other matters as mandated by the Leader and the Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council.

- 20.11 The Chief Officers of Portfolio's, as tasked, in consultation with the President shall be required to coordinate all meetings of the Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council including the National Working Council and shall work closely with the National Organizer to enhance and achieve the aims and objectives of the Party and to ensure maximum mobilization & reach of the Party in All Constituencies throughout the country.
- 20.12 The Chief Officers of Portfolio's, as tasked, shall carry out any functions entrusted to them by the President and or by the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council.
- 20.13 The Chief Officers of Portfolio's, as tasked, shall facilitate and assist in the oversight and management of the National Leadership Council or any Structure when called upon to do so by the President.
- 20.14 The various Chief Officers of Portfolio's, as tasked, shall be required to perform whatever political tasks are assigned and or mandated to them by the President and or the Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council.
- 20.15 The Office of Administration, led by the Chief Administration Officer shall be required to write and keep minutes and reports or details or strategic plans of all Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council meetings, all National Working Council Meetings and any other functions as directed by the Leader and the Strategic Leadership Council or National Leadership Council, or both.
- 20.16 The National Organizer, reporting directly to the Presidency shall coordinate and implement all the Party's programs of action throughout all Provinces. This Office shall ensure that all programs of action, as mandated and directed by the Leader and the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council are implemented and adopted by all structures of the Party.
- 20.17 The Treasury led by the Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for receiving of and the collation of all monies, including grants, donations, membership funds, and the disbursements of funds to Provinces.
- 20.18 The Treasury led by the Chief Financial Officer shall ensure monthly management accounts are kept and submitted to President and the Strategic Leadership Council and National Leadership Council for ratification deliberation and adoption.
- 20.19 The deputy President/s and Chief Financial Officer shall ensure that good governance principles as prescribed by and in accordance with SAICA policies are practiced and maintained at all times. All accounts, both monthly and annually shall be subjected to an audited on an annual basis by a registered professional Auditing firm.
- 20.20 The deputy President/s and Chief Financial Officer shall be required to raise and manage the funds for the Party in a diligent and circumspect way, as directed by the President, Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council.
- 20.21 The roles, duties & functions of the Office bearers are Not static and can be amended and or changed by the National Leadership Council subject to Federal General Council ratification.
- 20.22 The National Organizer portfolio falls directly under the Office of the Presidency and its existence and functions are at the behest of the Presidency.

21. NATIONAL YOUNG CONSERVATIVES LEADERSHIP COUNCIL - NCYLC

- 21.1 The National Youth Leadership Council shall be tasked with mobilizing the Youth nationally. It shall have its own Leadership Council consisting of office bearers as listed hereunder:
 - i) Chairperson,
 - ii) deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) deputy Secretary,

- v) Treasurer
 - vi) National Young Conservatives Organizer,
- 21.2. All powers of these office bearers shall be limited to issues specific to the mobilization of Youth. Members to this Council shall be nominated for election by a Conference comprising of Provincial, Constituency and Branch Youth Leadership Councils.
- 21.3 Only paid up and registered members of the Party under thirty years of age shall be eligible for election.
- 21.4 The National Youth Leadership Council is a structure that is Not a separate entity independent of the Party, but obtains its powers and functions from the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council and all powers are conferred in accordance with the Party Constitution.
- 21.5 Any resolution made by the Youth Leadership Council or its lower structures on any matters that are in conflict or contradict the resolutions of the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council and or are contrary with the aims and objectives of the Constitution, shall be expunged by the resolutions of the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council.
- 21.6 The election of National Young Conservatives Leadership Council Office bearers, including voting processes shall be in accordance with the provisions as outlined in this Constitution.

22. NATIONAL CONSERVATIVE WOMEN'S LEADERSHIP COUNCIL – NCWLC

- 22.1. The National Conservatives Women's Leadership Council shall be tasked with mobilizing and representing the women of South Africa. It shall have its own Leadership Council consisting of the following office bearers:
- i) Chairperson,
 - ii) deputy Chairperson,
 - iii) Secretary,
 - iv) deputy Secretary,
 - v) Treasurer,
 - vi) National Conservatives Women's Organizer,
- 22.2 All powers of these office bearers shall be limited to issues specific to the mobilization of women.
- 22.3 This Committee shall be elected every three (3) years by a Conference comprising of Provincial, Constituency and Branch Leadership Councils representing Women.
- 22.4 Only paid up and registered Women members of the Party, shall be eligible for election.
- 22.5 The National Conservatives Women's Leadership Council is a structure that is Not a separate entity independent of the Party, but obtains its powers and functions from the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council and all powers are conferred in accordance with the Party Constitution.
- 22.6 Any resolution made by the National Conservatives Women's Leadership Council or its lower structures on any matters that are in conflict or contradict any of the resolutions of the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council and or are contrary with the aims and objectives of the Party, shall be expunged by the resolutions of the Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council.
- 22.7 The election of National Conservatives Women's Leadership Council Office bearers including the Office bearers shall be in accordance with the provisions as outlined in this Constitution.

23. NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS

- 23.1 The National Headquarters of the Party shall be as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council adopted by the National Leadership Council in consultation with all Provincial and Zonal Councils.

24. PROVINCIAL HEADQUARTERS

- 24.1 The Provincial Headquarters of the Party shall be as directed by the Strategic Leadership Council adopted by the National Leadership Council in consultation with all Provincial and Zonal Councils.

25. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PUBLIC REPRESENTATIVES

- 25.1 An enforceable code of conduct that regulates the conduct and behavior of all public representatives deployed by the Party, shall be drawn up by the National Leadership Council and shall bind all the Party's public representatives at the national, provincial, and local levels of Government.
- 25.2 Breach of any of the codes of conduct shall result in the instigation of disciplinary procedures, and depending on the severity may result in the public representative being removed from office. All public representatives shall be required without exception, to strictly abide by this code of conduct.
- 25.3 Public representatives shall be:
- a) accountable to the National Leadership Council and have an absolute duty to maintain public trust.
 - b) perform all their tasks with absolute honesty and integrity and in furtherance of the fundamental aims and objectives of the Party.
 - c) exercise their public duties in an open and transparent manner and to regularly update their constituencies and Provincial Councils and the National Leadership Council regarding their activities to which they were deployed.
 - d) conduct themselves in a manner that exemplifies the idea of leadership by example.
 - e) ensure they do not use their role as a public representative to gain financial or material benefits for themselves; their families; friends or associates.
 - f) ensure they do not place themselves under financial or other obligations to outside individuals or organizations that might improperly influence the performance of their duties.
 - g) ensure they desist from any form of lobbying for remuneration and/or financial and/or personal gain.
 - h) ensure any decisions, including the making of appointments and the awarding of contracts must be made on individual merit.
 - i) declare any private interest that may impact on the exercising of their official duties, and where necessary recuse themselves from any such decision making process.
 - j) take immediate steps to resolve any conflict of interest that may arise in a manner that protects the Party and the public's interest.
 - k) advise the Party of any remunerated employment engaged in aside from their role as a public representative.
 - l) ensure they do not use their position/s to gain an improper advantage in any commercial transaction, and they must not use privileged information to advance a private interest.
 - m) ensure they regularly communicate with and implement the mandate of the constituency/s or regions, under the auspices, guidance and direction of the NLC.
 - n) ensure that they make obligatory monthly financial payments (as agreed by the Strategic Leadership Council and or the National Leadership Council) to the Party and to also make contributions to recognized grassroots organization/s as mandated by the Strategic Leadership Council and or the National Leadership Council, or both.
- 25.4 All Party public employee's in any levels of Govt or in NGO's and International Forums are at the explicit behest of the Party.

26 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 26.1. A duly constituted Federal General Conference of the Party, whether Policy, Elective or otherwise is the Only structure that can amend and/or revise this Constitution, on condition proposed amendments must be submitted to the Strategic Leadership Council at least 6 months in advance of a Federal General Conference.

- 26.2. The required majority for amending this Constitution is a two thirds majority of all the accredited delegates present at such a Federal General Conference.
- 26.3. Voting shall be by secret ballot or as directed by the Leader.
- 26.4. All resolutions of all structures of the Party, including any Provincial, Constituency or Branch General Conference/s or any Federal General Conference shall be confirmed in writing, circulated within all structures of the Party by the Secretary General's Office, in conjunction with the National Oversight Office headed by the National Chairperson.
- 26.5. All material and/or information discussed, agreed and/or implemented by the Party structures shall be deemed to be confidential unless agreed to and directed by the National Leadership Council.
- 26.6. The Strategic Leadership Council and the National Leadership Council, under the leadership and direction of the President can second any senior member of the Party to any sub structure and or portfolio committee for the express purpose to enhance and propagate the vision and the aims and objectives of the Party, including public governance; fundraising, international affairs; Party policy; religious affairs; economic affairs; all social affairs; and the enforcement of discipline or any matter agreed to and resolved by the National Leadership Council.

27. PARTY COLOURS AND LOGO

- 27.1 The name of the Party shall be: **CONSERVATIVES IN ACTION** - abbreviated as **CIA sa**.
- 27.2 The colors of the Party shall be: Navy Blue and blue, White, Gold, Burnt Orange with the emblem of Gold and burnt Orange flame surrounded by White stars, with the wording '**CIA sa**'.
- 27.3 The logo shall be a symmetrical colored flower surrounded by white stars with a Blue Star and burnt Orange swish next to the words **CIA sa**.

28. FEDERAL GENERAL CONFERENCE - FGC

- 28.1 The Federal General Conference shall be the highest decision making body of the Party and shall be called by the Leader in consultation with the Strategic Leadership Council, adopted at the National Leadership Council.
- 28.2 All delegates to Conference shall be required to undergo a pre- Conference accreditation process and must be elected by branches, Constituencies and Metro, audited by the Provincial Leadership Council.
- 28.3 All accreditation processes shall be managed by the Secretariat and the office of the National Chairperson, reporting directly to the Leader and the Strategic Leadership Council.
- 28.4 Any Conference preparations and planning shall be managed and coordinated by the National Working Council, reporting directly to the Leader and the National Leadership Council.
- 28.5 The terms of reference of this Council shall be as directed by the resolutions of the National Leadership Council.
- 28.6 Non - voting delegates shall only be permitted within Conference Plenary as invited guests of the Leader and the National Leadership Council.
- 28.7 Voting at Conference shall be by secret ballot or as directed by the Leader.
- 28.8 Conference shall receive and discuss reports from elected office bearers which shall include the Presidents political, oversight and Leadership which shall include reports from the delegated Chief Officers.

- 28.9 The Strategic Leadership Council shall appoint internal and or external facilitators who shall be tasked with clear terms of reference to co - ordinate and facilitate the various working commissions at Conference.
- 28.10 All commission/s reports shall be presented to the Strategic Leadership Council for deliberation and implementation within five days of the conclusion of the Federal General Conference they were mandated to.
- 28.11 The National Leadership Council shall be empowered to organize, facilitate and coordinate the Federal Conference/s whose delegates shall comprise of:
- i) Up to three elected members from every audited Branch Leadership Council.
 - ii) Up to three elected members from every audited Constituency Leadership Council.
 - iii) Up to three elected members from every audited Metro Leadership Council.
 - iii) Up to three elected members of every audited Provincial Leadership Council.
 - iv) Up to three elected members of every audited Metro Young Conservative Leadership Council.
 - v) Up to three elected members of every audited Provincial Young Conservative Leadership Council.
 - vi) Up to three elected members of every audited National Young Conservative Leadership Council
 - vii) Up to three elected members of every audited Metro Women's Conservative Leadership Council.
 - viii) Up to three elected members of every audited Provincial Women's Conservative Leadership Council.
 - ix) Up to three elected members of every audited National Women's Conservative Leadership Council.
 - x) Up to three elected members of every audited Zonal Leadership Councils.
 - xi) Up to three members of the Office of Policy and Research.
 - xii) Up to three members of the Office of Administration.
 - xiii) Up to three members of the Office Security and Intelligence.
 - xiv) Up to three members of the Office of IT, Publicity and Image.
 - xv) Up to three members of the Treasury.
 - xvi) Elected members of the Presidency.
 - xvii) All Party public representatives deployed to Municipal Councils, Provincial Legislature/s and National Parliament, including the NCOP.
 - xviii) Up to six (6) Party members with strategic skills as invited by the Presidency and Strategic Leadership Council.

29. RIGHT OF RECALL

- 29.1 The Party has the right to recall any person occupying and or holding any public Office in the name of the Party in any of the 3 spheres of Govt at any time.
- 29.2 Likewise, the right of recall as articulated in clause 2 above applies to any Staff member and or Office bearer in the Party, provided the decision is in accordance a Resolution of the SLC and clause 5, clause 6 & clause 7 of the Constitution have been followed.
- 29.3 The SLC Resolution is the final authority on any matters regarding the Right of Recall.

30. AMENDMENTS

- 30.1 Any amendments to this Constitution shall be by a two thirds majority of voting delegates present at a Federal General Conference - FGC.

31. EXPLANATION OF TERMS USED IN THE CONSTITUTION

- 31.1 **Annual membership fee:** - The National Leadership Council shall decide the annual membership fee.
- 31.2 **Direct:** - To conduct the affairs of, manage and regulate and or give direction.
- 31.3 **Appeal:** - An application to a higher level of the Party for a review of a decision.
- 31.4 **Colours, Emblem and Logo:** - The Party is the sole copyright holder of its colours, emblem and logo.

- 31.5 **Member:** - Any person who has applied and or subscribed to be accepted as a paid up member of the Party. Only South African citizens over the age of 18 years may apply for membership.
- 31.6 **Nominate:** - To propose in writing by name as candidate for a position.
- 31.7 **Second:** - A written endorsement of a proposal or nomination.
- 31.8 **Voting rights:** - The right to vote is as contained in the Constitution of the Party.
- 31.9 **SLC** - shall mean Strategic Leadership Council.
- 31.10 **NLC** - shall mean National Leadership Council.
- 31.11 **ZLC** - shall mean Zonal Leadership Council.
- 31.12 **NWC** - shall mean National Working Council.
- 31.13 **PLC** - shall mean Provincial Leadership Council.
- 31.14 **MLC** - shall mean Metro Leadership Council.
- 31.15 **CLC** - shall mean Constituency Leadership Council.
- 31.16 **SCLC** - shall mean Student Conservatives Leadership Council
- 31.17 **NCWLC** - shall mean National - Conservatives Women's Leadership Council.
- 31.18 **PCWLC** - shall mean Provincial - Conservatives Women's Leadership Council.
- 31.19 **MCWLC** - shall mean Metro - Conservatives Women's Leadership Council
- 31.20 **CCWLC** - shall mean Constituency - Conservatives Women's Leadership Council.
- 31.21 **NYCLC** - shall mean National - Young Conservatives Leadership Council.
- 31.22 **PYCLC** - shall mean Provincial - Young Conservatives Leadership Council.
- 31.23 **CYCLC** - shall mean Constituency - Young Conservatives Leadership Council.
- 31.24 **BLC** - shall mean Branch Leadership Council.
- 31.25 **Presidency** - shall mean the Office of the President which shall include the deputy President/s and any other supporting structures and or functions reporting directly to the President.
- 31.26 **Treasury** - shall mean the Office of the Chief Financial Officer and shall include all Zonal, Provincial Metro and Constituency Treasurers and any support functions throughout the country.
- 31.27 **FGC** - shall mean Federal General Conference and shall include Elective; Policy or Annual Conferences.

32. NAME OF THE PARTY

- 32.1 The registered name of the Party at the IEC shall be **CONSERVATIVES IN ACTION SA**, hereinafter referred to as CIAsa, abbreviated as CIAsa.

This Constitution after full and thorough consultation with all Provinces, was Signed and Adopted,

Place: Johannesburg:

Date: 30 September 2022,

Original Signed by:

PRESIDENT:

Full names & signature

deputy PRESIDENT:

Full names & signature

